
 

Page 1 of 3 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

City Council Workshop & Meeting   
October 2, 2017 

Agenda 
 

                                                                                                                
5:30 P.M.  Workshop  

A. General Assistance Ordinance Amendments – Holli Olivier (10 minutes) 
i. General Assistance Maximums 

ii. General Assistance Non Maximums 
B. Rental Assistance – Yvette Bouttenot (20 minutes) 
C. Troy Street Vacation – Eric Cousens and Michael Chammings (10 minutes) 
D. HOME Fund Commitments – Michael Chammings (15 minutes)  

 
6:00 P.M. There will be a brief recess so that the Mayor, Council and staff may attend the Domestic Violence Vigil at 
Festival Plaza 
 
7:00 P.M.  City Council Meeting  
 
Roll call votes will begin with Councilor Young 
 
Pledge of Allegiance   

I. Consent Items – All items listed with an asterisk (*) are considered as routine and will be approved in one 
motion.   There will be no separate discussion of these items unless a Councilor or citizen so requests.  If 
requested, the item will be removed from the consent agenda and considered in the order it appears on the 
agenda.   

 
II.          Minutes  

 September 18, 2017 Regular Council Meeting 
  

III. Communications, Presentations and Recognitions 

 Proclamation – Walk or Bike to School Day – October 4, 2017 

 Presentation - Auburn Book Project - Author, Ben Condit 

 Communication – Request from the Joint Charter Commission to conduct a second public hearing to 
consider amendments to the Lewiston Auburn Consolidation Agreement 

 
IV. Open Session – Members of the public are invited to speak to the Council about any issue directly related to 

City business which is not on this agenda.   
                                      
V.          Unfinished Business - none 
 

 



 

Page 2 of 3 

 

VI.      New Business - none 
 

VII. Reports 
  

a. Mayor’s Report  

b. City Councilors’ Reports   

c. City Manager Report  

VIII.      Open Session - Members of the public are invited to speak to the Council about any issue directly related to 
City business which is not on this agenda. 

 
IX. Executive Session  

A. Executive session - economic development matter (income utilization), pursuant to 1 M.R.S.A. 405 (6)(C)  
B. Executive session – economic development matter (OSPREY - CEA), pursuant to 1 M.R.S.A. 405 (6)(C) 
C. Executive session – economic development matter (land acquisition – Pan Am), pursuant to 1 M.R.S.A. 

405 (6)(C) 
 
X. Adjournment 
 
Executive Session:  On occasion, the City Council discusses matters which are required or allowed by State law to be considered in executive session.  Executive 
sessions are not open to the public.  The matters that are discussed in executive session are required to be kept confidential until they become a matter of public 
discussion.  In order to go into executive session, a Councilor must make a motion in public.  The motion must be recorded, and 3/5 of the members of the 
Council must vote to go into executive session.  An executive session is not required to be scheduled in advance as an agenda item, although when it is known at 
the time that the agenda is finalized, it will be listed on the agenda. The only topics which may be discussed in executive session are those that fall within one of 
the categories set forth in Title 1 M.R.S.A. Section 405(6).  Those applicable to municipal government are: 

 

A. Discussion or consideration of the employment, appointment, assignment, duties, promotion, demotion, compensation, evaluation, disciplining, 
resignation or dismissal of an individual or group of public officials, appointees or employees of the body or agency or the investigation or hearing of 
charges or complaints against a person or persons subject to the following conditions: 

(1) An executive session may be held only if public discussion could be reasonably expected to cause damage to the individual's reputation or the 
individual's right to privacy would be violated; 
(2) Any person charged or investigated must be permitted to be present at an executive session if that person so desires; 
(3) Any person charged or investigated may request in writing that the investigation or hearing of charges or complaints against that person be 
conducted in open session. A request, if made to the agency, must be honored; and 
(4) Any person bringing charges, complaints or allegations of misconduct against the individual under discussion must be permitted to be present. 

This paragraph does not apply to discussion of a budget or budget proposal;  

B. Discussion or consideration by a school board of suspension or expulsion of a public school student or a student at a private school, the cost of whose 
education is paid from public funds, as long as: 

(1) The student and legal counsel and, if the student is a minor, the student's parents or legal guardians are permitted to be present at an executive 
session if the student, parents or guardians so desire;  

C. Discussion or consideration of the condition, acquisition or the use of real or personal property permanently attached to real property or interests 
therein or disposition of publicly held property or economic development only if premature disclosures of the information would prejudice the competitive 
or bargaining position of the body or agency;  

D. Discussion of labor contracts and proposals and meetings between a public agency and its negotiators. The parties must be named before the body or 
agency may go into executive session. Negotiations between the representatives of a public employer and public employees may be open to the public if 
both parties agree to conduct negotiations in open sessions;  

E. Consultations between a body or agency and its attorney concerning the legal rights and duties of the body or agency, pending or contemplated 
litigation, settlement offers and matters where the duties of the public body's or agency's counsel to the attorney's client pursuant to the code of 
professional responsibility clearly conflict with this subchapter or where premature general public knowledge would clearly place the State, municipality or 
other public agency or person at a substantial disadvantage;  

F. Discussions of information contained in records made, maintained or received by a body or agency when access by the general public to those records is 
prohibited by statute;  

G. Discussion or approval of the content of examinations administered by a body or agency for licensing, permitting or employment purposes; consultation 
between a body or agency and any entity that provides examination services to that body or agency regarding the content of an examination; and review 
of examinations with the person examined; and  



 

Page 3 of 3 

 

H. Consultations between municipal officers and a code enforcement officer representing the municipality pursuant to Title 30-A, section 4452, subsection 
1, paragraph C in the prosecution of an enforcement matter pending in District Court when the consultation relates to that pending enforcement matter.  

 







James Pross, Ward One   Leroy Walker, Ward Five 
Robert Stone, Ward Two  Grady R. Burns, At Large 
Andy Titus, Ward Three  David C. Young, At Large 
Adam R. Lee, Ward Four 
 

Jonathan P. LaBonte, Mayor 
 

 

Page 1 of 3 

 

IN CITY COUNCIL 
 

ORDINANCE #: 
 

Be it Ordained, that the City Council hereby amends Chapter 24, Article II, Division 1, 

Sec. 24-23 of the General Assistance Ordinance Annual Adjustment of Maximum 

Benefits to incorporate the following maximum levels of assistance to be effective on and 

after October 1, 2017 through September 30, 2018, as follows: 

 
 

Sec. 24-23. - Annual adjustment of maximum benefits.  

(a)  Each year the Maine Municipal Association provides for the city three appendices 

providing maximum benefits applicable for the period beginning October 1 and ending 

September 30 as mandated by state law and based on certain federal values effective on 

October 1 of each year, as follows:  

(1)  Appendix A, a listing of overall maximum levels of general assistance relating to all 

Maine municipalities.  

(2)  Appendix B, a listing of maximum levels of assistance for food.  

(3)  Appendix C, a listing of maximum levels for heated and unheated housing.  

(4) Appendix D, a listing of maximum levels for households with electrically heated hot 

water. 

 (b)  The portion of these annual appendices applicable to the city, as adopted each year by the 

city council, are made a part of this chapter as though fully set forth herein and a copy 

thereof is available in the office of the city clerk.  

Editor's note— The appendices referred to in this section are not codified but are available in 

the office of the city clerk.  

 

 

 

 

 



James Pross, Ward One   Leroy Walker, Ward Five 
Robert Stone, Ward Two  Grady R. Burns, At Large 
Andy Titus, Ward Three  David C. Young, At Large 
Adam R. Lee, Ward Four 
 

Jonathan P. LaBonte, Mayor 
 

 

Page 2 of 3 

 

       Appendix A – GA Overall Maximums 
       Effective 10/1/2017 – 9/30/2018 
 
TOTAL NUMBER IN HOUSEHOLD:     1  2     3  4       5 

Lewiston/Auburn MSA: 
Auburn, Durham, Greene, Leeds, Lewiston, 

Lisbon, Livermore, Livermore Falls, Mechanic 

Falls, Minot, Poland, Sabattus, Turner, Wales 

 

641 

 

726 

 

915 

 

1,169 

 

1,397 

*Add $75.00 for each additional person* 

 

       Appendix B – Food Maximums 
       Effective 10/1/2017 – 9/30/2018 
 
Please Note:  The maximum amounts allowed for food are established in accordance with the 

U.S.D.A. Thrifty Food Plan. As of October 1, 2017, those amounts are: 

 

Number in Household Weekly Maximum Monthly Maximum 

   

1 44.65 192 

2 81.86 352 

3 117.21 504 

4 148.84 640 

5 176.74 760 

6 212.33 913 

7 234.65                     1,009 

8 268.14 

 

                    1,153 

 

**Note:  For each additional person, add $144 per month. 

 

 

       Appendix C – Rental Maximums 
       Effective 10/1/2017 – 9/30/2018 
 

Lewiston/Auburn  MSA Unheated Heated 

Bedrooms Weekly Monthly Weekly Monthly 

0 112 483 135 581 

1 125 538 153 659 

2 165 711 195 838 

3 208 896 251 1,079 

4 249 1,071 301 1,294 



James Pross, Ward One   Leroy Walker, Ward Five 
Robert Stone, Ward Two  Grady R. Burns, At Large 
Andy Titus, Ward Three  David C. Young, At Large 
Adam R. Lee, Ward Four 
 

Jonathan P. LaBonte, Mayor 
 

 

Page 3 of 3 

 

Appendix D – Utilities / Electric 
       Effective 10/1/2017 - 9/30/2018 
 
Electricity Maximums for Households With Electrically Heated Hot Water:  The maximum 

amounts allowed for utilities, hot water, for lights, cooking and other electric uses excluding 

heat: 

 

Number in Household Weekly Monthly 

1 $20.65 $89.00 

2 $23.75 $102.00 

3 $27.70 $119.00 

4 $32.25 $139.00 

5 $38.75 $167.00 

6 $41.00 $176.00 

NOTE:  For each additional person add $10.00 per month. 
 

NOTE: For electrically heated households, the maximum amount allowed for electrical utilities 

per month shall be the sum of the appropriate maximum amount under this subsection and the 

appropriate maximum for heating fuel as provided below. 



 

 
 
 

City of Auburn 
City Council Information Sheet 

 
 

 

Council Workshop or Meeting Date:  10/2/2017         
 
Author:  Holli Olivier  
 

Subject:   General Assistance Ordinance changes.  Effective 11/1/2017 
 

Information:  I’m seeking the approval of the new General Assistance Ordinance changes.   
 
These amendments are filed with the Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) in compliance with 
Title 22, M.R.S.A. §4305(4).   

 
By adopting the new changes, the program will be in compliance for the 70% reimbursement from the State.   
If we do not adopt the changes, the program will be penalized and lose the State reimbursement.   

 
City Budgetary Impacts:  The changes should help the City save on the burial fees that are paid by allowing a 
representative of General Assistance to follow up with relative’s financial institutions and by making other 
family members responsible for payment. 

 
Staff Recommended Action: Approval of the Ordinance changes as required by State statutes and ordinance.   

 
Previous Meetings and History: Ordinance changes may occur every two years unless a law is passed in an 
emergency legislative session.  However, they do not always occur on the every two-year schedule and several 
years have passed since the previous one.  Approval is needed by council when any changes are done to the 
General Assistance Ordinance. 

 
City Manager Recommendations:  
 
I concur with the recommendation.  Signature:  ____________________________________ 
 

 
Attachments:  
Administrative Rules and Regulations Language changes. 
 





James Pross, Ward One   Leroy Walker, Ward Five 
Robert Stone, Ward Two  Grady R. Burns, At Large 
Andy Titus, Ward Three  David C. Young, At Large 
Adam R. Lee, Ward Four 
 

Jonathan P. LaBonte, Mayor 
 

 

Page 1 of 2 

 

IN CITY COUNCIL 
 

ORDINANCE #: 
 
 

Be it Ordained, that the City Council hereby amends Chapter 24, Article II, Division 1, Sec. 24-21 
(d); and Chapter 24, Article II, Division 4, Sub division II, Sec. 24-161 (8)(h) of the General 
Assistance Ordinance to incorporate the following changes to be effective on and after 
November 1, 2017: 
 
Chapter 24, Article II, Division 1, Sec. 24-21 (d) Information from other sources 
 
 (d)  Information from other sources. Information furnished to the city by the state 

department of human services or any other agency or institution pursuant to 22 M.R.S.A. § 

4314, concerning recipients of categorical assistance, is confidential. The general assistance 

administrator will also comply with laws relating to the confidentiality of vital statistic records 

such as those concerning birth, marriage and death. (22 M.R.S.A. § 2706). Any representative of 

a financial institution or any employer of a general assistance applicant who, upon receipt of a 

written release signed by the depositor and a written request from the Administrator, refuses 

to provide necessary information to the administrator in order to verify an applicant’s eligibility 

must state in writing the reason for the refusal. Effective November 1, 2017: national banks are 

also obligated to disclose deposit information to the Administrator upon receipt of a written 

request and release signed by the depositor. Additionally, effective November 1, 2017, when a 

municipality or its agents are acting in accordance with section 4313(2) to verify eligibility for 

funeral or cremation benefits, an officer of a financial institution must disclose the amount 

deposited upon receipt of a written request from the municipality or its agents and a notarized 

affidavit signed by the overseer of the municipality or its agents stating that the named 

depositor is deceased. Any such person who refuses to provide information, without just cause, 

may be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $25 nor more than $100.   Any person, 

including the applicant, who knowingly and willfully makes a false representation of a material 

fact to the administrator is committing a Class E crime (22 M.R.S.A. § § 4314, 4315). 

 

 
 



James Pross, Ward One   Leroy Walker, Ward Five 
Robert Stone, Ward Two  Grady R. Burns, At Large 
Andy Titus, Ward Three  David C. Young, At Large 
Adam R. Lee, Ward Four 
 

Jonathan P. LaBonte, Mayor 
 

 

Page 2 of 2 

 

Chapter 24, Article II, Division 4, Sub division II, Sec. 24-161 (8)(h) Determination of family 
members’ ability to pay 
 
(h)  Determination of family members’ ability to pay 

Any person who refuses to provide necessary information to the administrator in order 
to verify an applicant's eligibility must state in writing the reason for the refusal.  

 
Grandparents, parents, children and grandchildren of the deceased who live in the 
state or own property in state whether or not living in or owning property in Maine, 
and the spouse or registered domestic partner of the deceased, are financially 
responsible for the burial or cremation of the deceased to the extent those relatives, 
individually or as a group, have a financial capacity to pay for the burial or cremation 
either in a lump sum or by means of a budgeted payment arrangement with the 
funeral home. Accordingly, at the request of the administrator, all legally liable 
relatives must provide the city administrator with any reasonably requested 
information regarding their income, assets and basic living expenses. The 
Administrator may also seek information from financial institutions holding assets of 
the deceased. Effective November 1, 2017, Maine law requires a financial institution 
to disclose the amount deposited in the corporation or association when the 
municipality or its agents are acting in accordance with section 4313 (2) and provide a 
written request and a notarized affidavit signed by the overseer of the municipality or 
its agents stating that the named depositor is deceased. 

 
 



 
 
 
 

City of Auburn 
City Council Information Sheet 

 
 

 

Council Workshop or Meeting Date: October 2, 2017 
 
Author:  Yvette Bouttenot, Community Development Manager 
 

Subject:  Staying Home Rental Assistance Program 
 
Information:  Staff presented the program guidelines to the Mayor and City Council on September 18.    Staff is 
requesting clarification on the following items to move the program forward 

1. Focus the pilot program on one school only or use a broad approach and all schools grade K-8. 
2. Measures for success: A child remains in the same school for the school year while family is receiving benefits or 

program committee meets to review the success of the child remaining in same school and the family has 
participated in a self-sufficiency program such as Bridges Out of Poverty. 

 
 

City Budgetary Impacts: Families may be referred to the Health and Social Services Department for assistance 
with utility costs.  This can help stretch the program funding but may put an additional burden on city 
resources. 
 

 
Staff Recommended Action: Request for a consensus for moving the program forward.  
 

 

Previous Meetings and History: August 18, 2017 Workshop; September 18, 2017 workshop 
 

 

City Manager Comments: 
 
I concur with the recommendation.  Signature:  ____________________________________ 

 

Attachments: Program Synopsis, Draft Guidelines 
 



STAYING HOME  
 RENTAL ASSISTANCE PROGRAM 

 

 

The City of Auburn’s Department of Economic and Community Development is creating 
a rental assistance program to support homeless families with school-aged children 
attending Auburn Schools.  The program will provide funds for security deposits, 
monthly rental subsidies and utility deposits.  Participating organizations include the 
City’s Community Development Office, Auburn School Department and the Auburn 
Housing Authority.  Other organizations to involve as resources are Auburn’s Social 
Services Department and Community Concepts Inc. Bridges Out of Poverty Program. 
 
The overall goal of this program will be to provide financial assistance to families with 
school-aged children so that they may have a stable home and remain in one school for 
the entirety of the school year.  Families will receive rental subsidies while they work to 
correct the circumstances that created the homelessness. They will be encouraged to 
participate in programs that will enable them to transition out of poverty. 
 
To be eligible a family must first be determined to be homeless or near homeless by the 
school department personnel who will then refer them to the Auburn Housing Authority. 
The level of assistance will be determined by the family’s current financial situation. The 
assistance can last for a period of 2 years. 
 
Assistance can include security deposits, monthly rent, and utility hook-ups.  Household 
income can be no more than 60% of the median income for the area; the family will pay 
no more than 30% of their income towards rent.  Some families may qualify for full 
rental subsidy. 
 
The family will be required to complete an application, provide financial information, find 
a suitable rental unit, sign a one-year lease agreement, meet periodically with program 
personnel to determine continued eligibility and participate in a self-sufficiency program. 
 
A committee will meet to determine if a family meets the criteria to receive assistance.  
The make-up of this committee will include one person from each of the following:  
Economic and Community Development Department, Health and Social Services 
Department, Auburn School Department and the Auburn Housing Authority. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



PROGRAM CHART 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 

ALL 

Reviews progress of families and effectiveness of program 

Community Development Department 

Issues assistance payments 
Completes reporting to City Manager, Citizens 

Advisory Committee and HUD 

Landlord 

Uses acceptable lease Corresponds with city on tenant behaviors 

Family in Need 

Locates a suitable rental unit Signs a lease with landlord 
Participates in self-sufficiency 

program 

Staying HOME Committee 

Review participant's file Approval /Denial for assistance 

Auburn Housing Authority 

Determine eligibility and level of assistance Insures units meet housing standards 

Auburn School Department 

Identify a family in need Make referral 



TIMELINE FOR SUCCESS 

 

Homeless 
Family 

receives 
subsidy 

3 month 
review 

Participates 
in self-

sufficiency 
program 

12 month 
review and 

recertification 

Successful  
family 

achieves  self 
sufficiency 



 1 

 DRAFT  

STAYING HOME  

 RENTAL ASSISTANCE PROGRAM 
   

I.   BACKGROUND   

  

The City of Auburn is the recipient of Home Investment Partnership Program (HOME) 

funds from the US Department of Housing and Urban Development and has created a tenant 

based rental assistance program under city council direction.  Program funds will be used to 

support homeless families of school-aged children attending Auburn Schools by providing 

funds for security deposits, monthly rental subsidies and utility deposits so that they may 

have stable housing and allowing the children to remain at the same school throughout the 

year.  The program will be operated by the Auburn Housing Authority and the Auburn 

School Department will provide the referrals when a homeless family has been identified by 

administrators.  The Rental Assistance Program Manager will oversee the intake process, 

calculate subsidies and inspect units.  A committee of four will meet as necessary for 

approval once eligibility and level of assistance has been determined.  The committee will 

be made up of the Community Development Manager, Director of Health and Social 

Services Department, the Auburn Housing Authority’s Rental Assistance Program Manager 

and an Auburn School Official.   

 

 

II.   PROGRAM OBJECTIVE 

 

A.  Reduce the number of families with school aged children who are homeless by 

removing the barriers that prevents them from securing housing; 

B.  Provide financial assistance for stable housing to the participants;    

C. Provide referrals to Community Concepts Inc. and Community Partnerships for  

  Protecting Children for parents to enroll in self-sufficiency programs. 

 

III.  DEFINITIONS  

  

A.  Participant—a household made up of a parent/legal guardian with a school aged 

child or children in Grades K – 8 and attending classes in the Auburn School 

District;  

B.  Affordable Rent—total rent and utilities contribution shall be affordable to tenant 

and be no more than 30% of the documented income;  

C. Maximum Rent Amount – to be determined annually using the HUD Fair Market 

Rent Documentation System;  

C.  Landlord—the owner or agent who controls the property; 

D. Homeless—a household who is currently living in a motel without financial 

assistance, in a car or tent, or are staying with friends/family; 

E. Near Homeless- a household who is in danger of losing their housing because of an 

extreme financial hardship but through no fault of their own. 

 

 



 2 

 

IV.  PARTICIPANT ELIGIBILITY CRITERIA  

 

A. The participant must be homeless or near homeless; 

B. The participant household must include a parent or legal guardian and a school aged 

child or children in grades kindergarten through 8 and attending classes in the 

Auburn School District; 

C.  The participant must not have taken action to cause his/her own displacement;  

D.  The participant does not have the resources to pay for the security deposit, monthly 

rent and utility deposit; 

E. Household incomes cannot exceed 60% of area median income; households with 

income above 60% may qualify for assistance through the Gorman funded Security 

Deposit Program; 

E. The participant must agree to attend periodic meetings to determine continued 

eligibility in the program. The initial meeting will be 3 months from the date the 

tenant signed the lease;    

F. Participants will be recertified after 12 months and may be eligible for additional 

assistance not to exceed a total of 24 months as long as funding is available. 

 

V. RENTAL UNIT ELIGIBILITY CRITERIA 

 

A.  The unit must be inspected by the Auburn Housing Authority and meet Housing 

 Quality Standards and cannot have a State Lead Abatement Order. Units must be 

 inspected annually; 

B.  The amount of rent for the unit cannot exceed the Fair Market Rent as determined by 

 HUD for the area; 

C.  The landlord or property owner must use an approved one-year lease that contains 

 provisions to protect tenants’ rights. 

 

  

VI.   INTAKE PROCEDURE  

  

A.  Participants will be referred to the Auburn Housing Authority by a school 

department official;   

  B.  The intake process shall include:  

1.   Full disclosure and verification of all members expected to occupy          

the unit; 

2.  Verification of income, other resources, and expenses;  

3.  Assistance in locating a rental unit that meets housing quality standards; 

4.  Determination of the level of assistance needed to house the family; 

 

  

VII.   DETERMINATION OF SUBSIDY    

  

A. Households with Income.  The Staying Home Rental Assistance Program will provide 

assistance in the form of subsidies to be paid directly to the landlord or utility company.  

Households will be required to pay a maximum of 30% of their household income 

towards monthly housing expense; 



 3 

 

B. Households with No Income.  The Staying Home Rental Assistance Program will 

provide 100% rental subsidies for families with no income.  Participants will be required 

to attend periodic meetings with the Auburn Housing Authority to determine if subsidy 

level remains appropriate. If a household financial capacity changes after the first three 

months the subsidy received will be reviewed and may be adjusted.   

 

C. Method for Subsidy Calculation:  The rental subsidy will be determined by the 

household income of the family.  The family will pay no more than 30% of their income 

towards their housing expense. 

 

D. Eligible Expenses.  Funds may be used to pay for the security deposits, monthly rent or 

utility hook-up/connection fee to get the utility established.  Families may be referred to 

the Health and Social Services Office for assistance with monthly utilities.   

 

E. Ineligible Expense.  Funds cannot be used to pay for cable, internet or phone connection 

fees.   

 

F. Maximum Subsidy.  The maximum subsidy shall not exceed one-month’s rent for 

security deposit, HUD’s Fair Market Monthly Rent Determination for monthly rent 

based on unit size and $150 for each utility connection.  Utilities include electricity, gas 

for heat and/or cooking. 

 

VIII.    CONDITIONS  

  

A.  Participant must find an affordable rental unit in Auburn;    

B.  The participant has not already moved into the rent prior to the approval with the 

exception of extraordinary circumstances; 

C.  The participant must take advantage of all other resources identified by the 

Committee;   

D.  Tenant must agree to a one-year lease;   

E. Participant must have the Landlord complete and sign a Landlord Agreement;  

  Security deposits will be held in accordance with Maine law and returned to the City 

  of Auburn’s Community Development Office when the tenant vacates the unit;   

F.  The City will issue checks to be sent directly to landlord or utility company;   

G.  Participants are eligible for assistance for one year; the subsidy may be renewed for a 

second year following a review of participant’s income and expenses and subject to 

availability of funding.  The review will include the steps the participant has taken to 

move towards self-sufficiency; 

H. Participant must notify the Auburn Housing Authority if they move out of the unit.  

Moving out of the unit will end subsidy payments.  The subsidy may not be 

transferred to a new unit without the approval of the Committee and can only be 

approved if the tenant had to move through no fault of their own. 

  

XV.   STAYING HOME RENTAL ASSISTANCE COMMITTEE 

 

The committee shall be made up of the City of Auburn’s Community Development 

Manager, the Auburn Housing Authority’s Housing Rental Program Manager, Auburn 



 4 

School Department Official and the Director of Health and Social Services Department.  

The Committee is responsible for approving subsidies for each participant.  Approval will be 

by unanimous vote and all committee members must be in attendance.  If all members are 

not available to meet in person, a qualified substitute must be available to represent the 

absent member.  

 

The role of the Auburn School Department Official is to provide referrals to the Auburn 

Housing Authority, to provide documentation that the participant is homeless or near 

homeless, that the household members include a parent or legal guardian, a child/children 

attending Auburn Schools from K – 8
th

 grade and reporting if a participant is not attending 

school on a regular basis. 

 

The role of the Housing Rental Program Manager is for overseeing the intake process to 

include determining eligibility and level of assistance; to provide the City with proper 

documentation for processing subsidy payments; inspection of rental units to ensure they 

meet Housing Quality Standards; and to review participants for renewal.  Auburn Housing 

will maintain participant files that will be available for monitoring. 

 

The role of the Community Development Manager will be to monitor the program and 

ensure it meets HUD regulations, process security deposit and rental subsidy payments to 

landlords; payments for establishing utilities; and complete reports to HUD. 

 

The role of the Director of Health and Social Services will be to meet with the families who 

may need additional resources. 

 

X. OTHER RESOURCES 

 

 Community Concepts-Bridges Out of Poverty and CCFC Family Self-sufficiency Program; 

Community Partnerships for Protecting Children  

 

 

 

 

 

9.13.2017 (Draft) 

 

 

   

  



 
 
 
 

City of Auburn 
City Council Information Sheet 

 
 

 

Council Workshop or Meeting Date:    October 2, 2017 
 
Author:  Doug Greene, Urban Development Specialist, Economic and Community Development 
 

Subject:  Discontinuance of a portion of Troy Street 
 
Information:  The City of Auburn has been working with a developer on an infill project located on a city owned property 
(PID # 240-212).  To date, a zone change to Form Based Code has been approved, a purchase and sales agreement has 
been executed and the city is assisting the project with TIF and HOME funding.  The project is scheduled to go to the 
Planning Board for a Special Exception and Site Plan Review in November.   
 
The idea of discontinuing a portion of Troy Street was brought up during early the stages of discussion with the 
developer as a way to facilitate and maximize parking for the development.  The discontinuance would still allow 
vehicular travel (like a driveway) from Library Street to Hampshire Street while allowing parked vehicles to back out into 
the vehicular way.  An attached map depicts the area proposed for discontinuance.  The last section of Troy Street 
before it connects with Library Street would remain as a public street in order to avoid paying damages to the adjacent 
property owner at 29 Library Street.  Initial discussions with Public Services indicate they would still plow the vehicular 
way in the future. 

 
City Budgetary Impacts: There will be minor costs in legal ads, letters to abutters and a possible survey.  The 
discontinuance will also greatly reduce or eliminate future maintenance costs of this portion of Troy Street.  

 
Staff Recommended Action: Staff recommends the City Council endorse the proposed discontinuance and direct staff to 
proceed with the discontinuance process.  The process will involve drafting a petition and associated map that would go 
to a 1st reading and public hearing before the City Council, and include notification to abutting property owners. 

 
Previous Meetings and History:  None regarding a proposal to discontinue a portion of Troy Street. 

 
City Manager Comments:  
 
I concur with the recommendation. Signature: _______________________________________ 

 
Attachments:  
1. Map of development parcel and the portion of Troy Street proposed to be discontinued. 
 



Court
Tro

y

Un
ion

Sp
rin

g

Library

Hampshire

Pe
arl

Pine

Ple
as

an
t

School

Mi
no

t

Oa
k

Ra
ilro

ad

dgreene
Callout
Troy Street (PID # 240-212)Development Site

dgreene
Polygonal Line

dgreene
Callout
Portion of Troy Street proposed for discontinuance

dgreene
Text Box
             ATTACHMENTTroy Street Discontinuance Map



 
 
 
 

City of Auburn 
City Council Information Sheet 

 
 

 

Council Workshop or Meeting Date:     
 

Author:  Michael Chammings, Director of Economic and Community Development 
 

Subject:  HOME Fund Commitment  
 
Information:   

The City agreed to partially fund the Troy Street project with $110,000 in HOME funds; the allocations of these 
funds need to be voted on.  
 

 

City Budgetary Impacts: Minimal, Federal funds are already approved for moderate or low income housing 
assistance and the tax shift/general fund loss would be minimal.  Any co-op housing project funding would be 
pushed into fiscal year 2019.   

 
Staff Recommended Action:  The staff recommends passage.  
 

 
Previous Meetings and History:  

Council Executive Session, June 19th, 2017 

Council Executive Session, August 7th, 2017 

Council Meeting, August 31th, 2017 
 

 
City Manager Comments:  
 
I concur with the recommendation. Signature: _______________________________________ 

 
Attachments:  

Troy Street Purchase and Sale Agreement. 





























 
 

OFFICE OF THE MAYOR 

CITY OF AUBURN 

 

 
 

 
 

PROCLAMATION 
 

Walk or Bike to School Day - October 4, 2017 
 
 
WHEREAS, Hundreds of children could be saved each year across the country if communities take steps to make 
pedestrian safety a priority; and 
 
WHEREAS, A lack of physical activity plays a leading role in rising rates of obesity, diabetes and other health 
problems among children and being able to walk or bicycle to school offers an opportunity to build activity into daily 
routine; and 
 
WHEREAS, An important role for parents and caregivers is to teach children about pedestrian safety and become 
aware of the difficulties and dangers that children face on their trip to school each day and the health and 
environmental risks related to physical inactivity and air pollution; and 
 
WHEREAS, Community members and leaders, specifically the City Council, the Lewiston-Auburn Complete Streets 
Committee, and City of Auburn management, should become more aggressive in their planning and put forward 
recommendations to make immediate changes to enable children to safely walk and bicycle in our communities and 
develop a list of suggestions for improvements that can be done over time; and 
 
WHEREAS, children, parents and community leaders around the world are joining together to walk to school and 
evaluate walking and bicycling conditions in their communities; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, I, Jonathan P. LaBonte, Mayor of the great City of Auburn, do hereby 
proclaim Wednesday, October 4, 2017 as Walk or Bike to School Day in the City of Auburn, and I urge all citizens to 
participate in the. 
 
 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto 
Set my hand and caused the Seal of the 
City of Auburn, Maine 
to be fixed this 2nd  day of October, 2017 
 

 
 
 
 

 
Mayor Jonathan P. LaBonté 





Auburn student Benjamin Condit is the winner of the 2017 Auburn Book Award, a 
contest held annually since 2001.  The book project, open to Auburn’s grade six 
writers, is designed to promote young authors’ writing while simulating the world 
of book publishing.  Students write and illustrate original books while following 
publishing guidelines and meeting deadlines, and then submit their books to the 
contest. The winning book is published and copies are presented to all Auburn 
elementary school libraries and the Auburn Public Library.  
 
Condit’s book, entitled “The Maine Land” is described by Benjamin as a “small 
collection of poems about a big state.”  The idea for his book initially came from his 
interest in nature.  As he contemplated a nature theme, he focused on animals and 
thought about animals in the sea and animals on the mainland, and instantly liked 
the play on words. The title “The Maine Land” took root.  He kept a writing notebook 
to jot down his ideas about things that represent Maine, and decided to write poems. 
“Poetry is fun.  I think it is interesting because it can mean a lot of different things.  It 
is not too bold, and I tried to make my accompanying illustrations not pop too much.  
I used a lot of colored pencils because they are more mellow, and I was looking for a 
mellow effect.”  His writing goal is received and reflected in a book review by 
Fairview School Assistant Principal, Mrs. Stephanie Marris, “The rich language of 
Condit’s poems calms the spirit and pulls readers in! Maine’s beauty is spectacularly 
highlighted in this delightful collection!” The book is dedicated to Benjamin’s dad, 
who encourages him to go places, and hike or climb or jump into sand dunes to find 
beautiful spaces.  
 
Exceptional book entries, which are not selected as finalists, are recognized with 
individual awards. Abigail Faucher received recognition with an art award, and 
Walton’s Jaden Ouellette received recognition for writing as he accepted a writing 
award at the close of the school year in June.  Authors of the nine finalist books will 
share their books and receive awards at the Auburn Book Awards Celebration 
from 11 am to noon on Saturday, October 21, at the Auburn Public Library.  
Those student authors are Gabrielle Brevosky for “I’m Alive,” Gabriel Despradel for 
“Natures Angle,” Hannah Johndro for “Luka’s Lesson,” Emily Quinnell for 
“Dreamcatcher,” Jayme Saulnier for “Trapped!” Austin Sellinger for “The Untold 
Truth of Aaron Williams,” Leah Sterling for “Secrets of the Ocean,” and finally the 
winning entry, Ben Condit for “The Maine Land.”   Ben’s name will be added to the 
plaque of student authors on view at Auburn City Hall, and he will receive a special 
award sponsored by Maine Family Federal Credit Union and presented by James 
Moreau. 
 
After the awards ceremony, copies of the “The Maine Land” will be available to 
purchase for $5.00, and Benjamin will be available to sign them!  The public is 
invited to attend.  Benjamin hopes people will enjoy reading his book and recognize 
a place, or a feeling, and be motivated to visit special Maine places. “Well, you can’t 
really visit winter, but you can enjoy winter.  Have fun and go into the woods!”   
 



After the book signing, Benjamin’s future plans include, “Checking out more of 
Maine.” He would like to do the Allagash Waterway, hiking, biking, and supporting 
efforts to conserve the “Maine Land.” 
 
 
 
 



On Sep 30, 2017, at 11:37 AM, Gene Geiger <ggeiger@geiger.com> wrote: 

Dear Peter and Ed, 

On June 30, 2017 we delivered a document set to both cities that included text of a proposed charter and 
consolidation agreement should voters in Lewiston and Auburn decide to merge the cities. 

The binder document set and my transmittal letter said the documents are draft documents.  For example 
the title on the Consolidation Agreement included the term “(Draft)” and the third paragraph of the first 
page of the transmittal letter said, “The Charter Commission emphasizes the materials assembled and 
presented here are not final and are subject to changes based on input from upcoming public meetings.” 

Members of the Commission have attended the two public hearings, listened, and discussed what we 
heard there and elsewhere. We responded to what we heard at the July 31 Auburn City Council hearing 
in a document dated September 7 and sent to the Auburn Council.  We will do the same shortly in 
response to what we heard at the Lewiston City Council meeting held on September 21. 

We are currently updating and finalizing key documents.  That final document set will be sent to each city 
by October 6 or before.   

Other than typographical changes, the final document set will update and clarify these two elements: 

1. Retirement of Indebtedness.  The governing statute of a merger is Maine Revised Statues Title 
30-A, Chapter 113.  In section 2154 it states that bonded debt incurred before a merger remains 
the responsibility of the geography of the taxpayers where the debt was incurred. 

<image006.jpg> 

In Section G of the Consolidation Agreement document, the text reads: 

After consolidation, taxes for the repayment of the bonded indebtedness of each of the 
now-existing Cities on January 1, 2020 shall be assessed solely against the residents of 
within the limits of each of the previously existing Cities, such assessment to be in 
addition to all other real and personal property taxes.  As of June 30, 2016, the tax rate 
to retire the bonded indebtedness of each City was as follows and as set forth on Page 
73 of the Options and Impact Report: 

The updated document will make clear that it is the taxpayer, not residents, are obligated to 
retire the debt. 

2. Charter Amendment.  In the charter document in section 8.9 on page 28 the incorrect state 
statute was referenced.   

<image007.png> 

The correct reference is Title 30-A, Subpart 2, Chapter 111 

Because of these updates and because the document set was labeled Draft, we request each city 
conduct a second public hearing to consider the amendments.   

According to the relevant section of Title 30-A, Chapter 113, § 2152: 

4. Submission of consolidation agreement. The consolidation agreement shall be submitted to 
the voters of each municipality at a municipal election after notice and hearing as provided in 
paragraphs A and B. The consolidation agreement may be amended, provided that the amended 

mailto:ggeiger@geiger.com


agreement meets the notice and hearing requirements of paragraphs A and B. Upon approval of 
a majority of those voting in each of 2 or more municipalities, the consolidation agreement 
becomes effective, according to its terms, in those municipalities. 

A. The municipal officers of each municipality shall hold a public hearing on the consolidation 
agreement. The public hearing may be held on more than one day, provided that it adjourns 
permanently at least 10 days before the election. 

B. The municipal officers shall notify the voters of each municipality of the consolidation 
agreement and of the time and place of the public hearing in the same manner that the voters of 
each municipality are notified of ordinances to be enacted. This notice must be given at least 30 
days before the election and at least 10 days before the hearing. 

If you would be so kind, please acknowledge receipt of this by return email. 

Gene Geiger, Chair 
Lewiston and Auburn Joint Charter Commission 

 



 

 
 
 

City of Auburn 
City Council Information Sheet 

 
 

 

Council Workshop or Meeting Date:  October 2, 2017  
 
 

Subject:  Executive Session 
 

Information: Discussion regarding economic development (income utilization), pursuant to 1 M.R.S.A. Section 
405(6) (C). 

 
Executive Session:  On occasion, the City Council discusses matters which are required or allowed by State law to be considered in executive session.  Executive 
sessions are not open to the public.  The matters that are discussed in executive session are required to be kept confidential until they become a matter of 
public discussion.  In order to go into executive session, a Councilor must make a motion in public.  The motion must be recorded, and 3/5 of the members of 
the Council must vote to go into executive session.  An executive session is not required to be scheduled in advance as an agenda item, although when it is 
known at the time that the agenda is finalized, it will be listed on the agenda. The only topics which may be discussed in executive session are those that fall 
within one of the categories set forth in Title 1 M.R.S.A. Section 405(6).  Those applicable to municipal government are: 
 

A. Discussion or consideration of the employment, appointment, assignment, duties, promotion, demotion, compensation, evaluation, disciplining, 
resignation or dismissal of an individual or group of public officials, appointees or employees of the body or agency or the investigation or hearing of charges or 
complaints against a person or persons subject to the following conditions:  

(1) An executive session may be held only if public discussion could be reasonably expected to cause damage to the individual's reputation or the 
individual's right to privacy would be violated; 

(2) Any person charged or investigated must be permitted to be present at an executive session if that person so desires; 
(3) Any person charged or investigated may request in writing that the investigation or hearing of charges or complaints against that person be 

conducted in open session. A request, if made to the agency, must be honored; and  
(4) Any person bringing charges, complaints or allegations of misconduct against the individual under discussion must be permitted to be present. 
This paragraph does not apply to discussion of a budget or budget proposal;  
 
B. Discussion or consideration by a school board of suspension or expulsion of a public school student or a student at a private school, the cost of whose 

education is paid from public funds, as long as:  
(1) The student and legal counsel and, if the student is a minor, the student's parents or legal guardians are permitted to be present at an executive 

session if the student, parents or guardians so desire;  
 
C. Discussion or consideration of the condition, acquisition or the use of real or personal property permanently attached to real property or interests 

therein or disposition of publicly held property or economic development only if premature disclosures of the information would prejudice the competitive or 
bargaining position of the body or agency;  

 
D. Discussion of labor contracts and proposals and meetings between a public agency and its negotiators. The parties must be named before the body or 

agency may go into executive session. Negotiations between the representatives of a public employer and public employees may be open to the public if both 
parties agree to conduct negotiations in open sessions;  

 
E. Consultations between a body or agency and its attorney concerning the legal rights and duties of the body or agency, pending or contemplated 

litigation, settlement offers and matters where the duties of the public body's or agency's counsel to the attorney's client pursuant to the code of professional 
responsibility clearly conflict with this subchapter or where premature general public knowledge would clearly place the State, municipality or other public 
agency or person at a substantial disadvantage;  

 
F. Discussions of information contained in records made, maintained or received by a body or agency when access by the general public to those records 

is prohibited by statute; 
 
G. Discussion or approval of the content of examinations administered by a body or agency for licensing, permitting or employment purposes; 

consultation between a body or agency and any entity that provides examination services to that body or agency regarding the content of an examination; and 
review of examinations with the person examined; and  

 
H. Consultations between municipal officers and a code enforcement officer representing the municipality pursuant to Title 30-A, section 4452, 

subsection 1, paragraph C in the prosecution of an enforcement matter pending in District Court when the consultation relates to that pending enforcement 
matter.  
 



 

 
 
 

City of Auburn 
City Council Information Sheet 

 
 

 

Council Workshop or Meeting Date:   October 2, 2017  
 
 

Subject:  Executive Session 
 

Information: Discussion regarding economic development (OSPREY - CEA), pursuant to 1 M.R.S.A. Section 
405(6) (C). 

 
Executive Session:  On occasion, the City Council discusses matters which are required or allowed by State law to be considered in executive session.  Executive 
sessions are not open to the public.  The matters that are discussed in executive session are required to be kept confidential until they become a matter of 
public discussion.  In order to go into executive session, a Councilor must make a motion in public.  The motion must be recorded, and 3/5 of the members of 
the Council must vote to go into executive session.  An executive session is not required to be scheduled in advance as an agenda item, although when it is 
known at the time that the agenda is finalized, it will be listed on the agenda. The only topics which may be discussed in executive session are those that fall 
within one of the categories set forth in Title 1 M.R.S.A. Section 405(6).  Those applicable to municipal government are: 
 

A. Discussion or consideration of the employment, appointment, assignment, duties, promotion, demotion, compensation, evaluation, disciplining, 
resignation or dismissal of an individual or group of public officials, appointees or employees of the body or agency or the investigation or hearing of charges or 
complaints against a person or persons subject to the following conditions:  

(1) An executive session may be held only if public discussion could be reasonably expected to cause damage to the individual's reputation or the 
individual's right to privacy would be violated; 

(2) Any person charged or investigated must be permitted to be present at an executive session if that person so desires; 
(3) Any person charged or investigated may request in writing that the investigation or hearing of charges or complaints against that person be 

conducted in open session. A request, if made to the agency, must be honored; and  
(4) Any person bringing charges, complaints or allegations of misconduct against the individual under discussion must be permitted to be present. 
This paragraph does not apply to discussion of a budget or budget proposal;  
 
B. Discussion or consideration by a school board of suspension or expulsion of a public school student or a student at a private school, the cost of whose 

education is paid from public funds, as long as:  
(1) The student and legal counsel and, if the student is a minor, the student's parents or legal guardians are permitted to be present at an executive 

session if the student, parents or guardians so desire;  
 
C. Discussion or consideration of the condition, acquisition or the use of real or personal property permanently attached to real property or interests 

therein or disposition of publicly held property or economic development only if premature disclosures of the information would prejudice the competitive or 
bargaining position of the body or agency;  

 
D. Discussion of labor contracts and proposals and meetings between a public agency and its negotiators. The parties must be named before the body or 

agency may go into executive session. Negotiations between the representatives of a public employer and public employees may be open to the public if both 
parties agree to conduct negotiations in open sessions;  

 
E. Consultations between a body or agency and its attorney concerning the legal rights and duties of the body or agency, pending or contemplated 

litigation, settlement offers and matters where the duties of the public body's or agency's counsel to the attorney's client pursuant to the code of professional 
responsibility clearly conflict with this subchapter or where premature general public knowledge would clearly place the State, municipality or other public 
agency or person at a substantial disadvantage;  

 
F. Discussions of information contained in records made, maintained or received by a body or agency when access by the general public to those records 

is prohibited by statute; 
 
G. Discussion or approval of the content of examinations administered by a body or agency for licensing, permitting or employment purposes; 

consultation between a body or agency and any entity that provides examination services to that body or agency regarding the content of an examination; and 
review of examinations with the person examined; and  

 
H. Consultations between municipal officers and a code enforcement officer representing the municipality pursuant to Title 30-A, section 4452, 

subsection 1, paragraph C in the prosecution of an enforcement matter pending in District Court when the consultation relates to that pending enforcement 
matter.  
 



 

 
 
 

City of Auburn 
City Council Information Sheet 

 
 

 

Council Workshop or Meeting Date:   October 2, 2017  
 
 

Subject:  Executive Session 
 

Information: Discussion regarding economic development (land acquisition – Pan Am), pursuant to 1 M.R.S.A. 
Section 405(6) (C). 

 
Executive Session:  On occasion, the City Council discusses matters which are required or allowed by State law to be considered in executive session.  Executive 
sessions are not open to the public.  The matters that are discussed in executive session are required to be kept confidential until they become a matter of 
public discussion.  In order to go into executive session, a Councilor must make a motion in public.  The motion must be recorded, and 3/5 of the members of 
the Council must vote to go into executive session.  An executive session is not required to be scheduled in advance as an agenda item, although when it is 
known at the time that the agenda is finalized, it will be listed on the agenda. The only topics which may be discussed in executive session are those that fall 
within one of the categories set forth in Title 1 M.R.S.A. Section 405(6).  Those applicable to municipal government are: 
 

A. Discussion or consideration of the employment, appointment, assignment, duties, promotion, demotion, compensation, evaluation, disciplining, 
resignation or dismissal of an individual or group of public officials, appointees or employees of the body or agency or the investigation or hearing of charges or 
complaints against a person or persons subject to the following conditions:  

(1) An executive session may be held only if public discussion could be reasonably expected to cause damage to the individual's reputation or the 
individual's right to privacy would be violated; 

(2) Any person charged or investigated must be permitted to be present at an executive session if that person so desires; 
(3) Any person charged or investigated may request in writing that the investigation or hearing of charges or complaints against that person be 

conducted in open session. A request, if made to the agency, must be honored; and  
(4) Any person bringing charges, complaints or allegations of misconduct against the individual under discussion must be permitted to be present. 
This paragraph does not apply to discussion of a budget or budget proposal;  
 
B. Discussion or consideration by a school board of suspension or expulsion of a public school student or a student at a private school, the cost of whose 

education is paid from public funds, as long as:  
(1) The student and legal counsel and, if the student is a minor, the student's parents or legal guardians are permitted to be present at an executive 

session if the student, parents or guardians so desire;  
 
C. Discussion or consideration of the condition, acquisition or the use of real or personal property permanently attached to real property or interests 

therein or disposition of publicly held property or economic development only if premature disclosures of the information would prejudice the competitive or 
bargaining position of the body or agency;  

 
D. Discussion of labor contracts and proposals and meetings between a public agency and its negotiators. The parties must be named before the body or 

agency may go into executive session. Negotiations between the representatives of a public employer and public employees may be open to the public if both 
parties agree to conduct negotiations in open sessions;  

 
E. Consultations between a body or agency and its attorney concerning the legal rights and duties of the body or agency, pending or contemplated 

litigation, settlement offers and matters where the duties of the public body's or agency's counsel to the attorney's client pursuant to the code of professional 
responsibility clearly conflict with this subchapter or where premature general public knowledge would clearly place the State, municipality or other public 
agency or person at a substantial disadvantage;  

 
F. Discussions of information contained in records made, maintained or received by a body or agency when access by the general public to those records 

is prohibited by statute; 
 
G. Discussion or approval of the content of examinations administered by a body or agency for licensing, permitting or employment purposes; 

consultation between a body or agency and any entity that provides examination services to that body or agency regarding the content of an examination; and 
review of examinations with the person examined; and  

 
H. Consultations between municipal officers and a code enforcement officer representing the municipality pursuant to Title 30-A, section 4452, 

subsection 1, paragraph C in the prosecution of an enforcement matter pending in District Court when the consultation relates to that pending enforcement 
matter.  
 


	0  Agenda 10-02-2017
	1a1  Info Sheet  17-18 Appendices
	1a2 GA Appendices A-D Sign off
	1a3  GA Ordinance changesFinal
	1b1  Info sheet 17-18 non max ordinance (2)
	1b2  GA Non Max Sign off
	1b3  GA non-max Ordinance changesx
	2  Info Sheet Staying HOME Rental Assistance Program
	2a  Staying Home Program Synopsis2
	2b  Staying HOME Rental Assistance Program Guidelines
	3  Info Sheet Troy Street Discontinuance 10-2-17
	3a  Troy St   Discontinuance Map 9-27-17
	4  Info Sheet-Homefunds10-02-17
	4a  Troy Street Purchase and Sale Agreement- Final Executed Copy
	5  Minutes 9-18-2017
	6a  Walk or Bike to School Day 2017
	6b  DSC_0237
	6bb  Ben Condit
	6c  Communication From JCC
	7  Executive Session Ec Dev - Inc Util
	8  Executive Session Ec Dev - OSPREY
	9  Executive Session Ec Dev - Pan Am



